Public Document Pack
Monitoring Officer
Geoff Wild
County Hall, Newport, Isle of Wight PO30 1UD
Telephone (01983) 821000

Name of meeting

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date

MONDAY 28 SEPTEMBER 2020

Time

10.00 AM

Venue
Members of the
committee

VIRTUAL (MS TEAMS)
Cllrs R Barry (Chairman), A Axford, J Kilpatrick, C Quirk,
J Hobart, M Lilley and Vacancy
Democratic Services Officer: Charlotte Sadler
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk

1.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)
To confirm as a true record the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2020.

2.

Declarations of Interest
To invite Members to declare any interest they might have in the matters on the
agenda.

3.

Public Question Time - 15 Minutes Maximum
Questions must be delivered in writing or by electronic mail to Democratic
Services at democratic.services@iow.gov.uk no later than 10am on 24
September 2020. Each question must give the name and address of the
questioner.
(*)To observe the meeting as a member of the public/press please
use the link provided. This link will be made available 24 hours prior
to start of the meeting. Please ensure you access the meeting in good
time. Guidance on how to access the public meeting can be found
HERE. Committee members and pre-arranged attendees will be
contacted by Democratic Services to supply the appropriate link to
participate in the meeting.
Details of this and other Council committee meetings can be viewed on the
Isle of Wight Council’s website at http://www.iwight.com/Meetings/current/.
This information may be available in alternative formats on request.
Page 1

4.

Approval of the Final Accounts - Update
To note the revised timetable for the approval of the final accounts.

5.

Reports of the External Auditor, Ernst and Young (Pages 11 - 16)
To receive an update from the External Auditors on the progress with the audits
of the Isle of Wight Council and Isle of Wight Pension Fund for the year ended 31
March 2020.

6.

Internal Audit Progress Report (Pages 17 - 36)
To consider the report of the Chief Internal Auditor.

7.

The Councils Risk Profile (Pages 37 - 44)
To consider the report of the Assistant Chief Executive.

8.

Property Investment Portfolio Bi-Annual Report (Pages 45 - 54)
To consider the report of the Director of Corporate Services.

9.

Treasury Management Annual Report 2019-20 (Pages 55 - 72)
To consider the report of the Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer

10.

Member's Question Time
A question must be submitted in writing or by electronic mail to Democratic
Services no later than 10am, 25 September 2020 .

GEOFF WILD
Monitoring Officer
Friday, 18 September 2020

Page 2

Interests
If there is a matter on this agenda which may relate to an interest you or your partner or
spouse has or one you have disclosed in your register of interests, you must declare your
interest before the matter is discussed or when your interest becomes apparent. If the
matter relates to an interest in your register of pecuniary interests then you must take no
part in its consideration and you must leave the room for that item. Should you wish to
participate as a member of the public to express your views where public speaking is
allowed under the Council’s normal procedures, then you will need to seek a dispensation
to do so. Dispensations are considered by the Monitoring Officer following the submission
of a written request. Dispensations may take up to 2 weeks to be granted.
Members are reminded that it is a requirement of the Code of Conduct that they should
also keep their written Register of Interests up to date. Any changes to the interests
recorded on that form should be made as soon as reasonably practicable, and within 28
days of the change. A change would be necessary if, for example, your employment
changes, you move house or acquire any new property or land.
If you require more guidance on the Code of Conduct or are unsure whether you need to
record an interest on the written register you should take advice from the Monitoring
Officer – Geoff Wild on (01983) 821000, email geoff.wild@iow.gov.uk, or Deputy
Monitoring Officer - Justin Thorne on (01983) 821000, email justin.thorne@iow.gov.uk.
Notice of recording
Please note that all meetings that are open to the public and press may be filmed or
recorded and/or commented on online by the council or any member of the public or press.
However, this activity must not disrupt the meeting, and if it does you will be asked to stop
and possibly to leave the meeting. This meeting may also be filmed for live and
subsequent broadcast (except any part of the meeting from which the press and public are
excluded).
If you wish to record, film or photograph the council meeting or if you believe that being
filmed or recorded would pose a risk to the safety of you or others then please speak with
the democratic services officer prior to that start of the meeting. Their contact details are
on the agenda papers.
If the press and public are excluded for part of a meeting because confidential or exempt
information is likely to be disclosed, there is no right to record that part of the meeting. All
recording and filming equipment must be removed from the meeting room when the public
and press are excluded.
If you require further information please see the council guide to reporting on council
meetings which can be found at
http://www.iwight.com/documentlibrary/view/recording-of-proceedings-guidance-note
All information that is recorded by the council is held in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 2018. For further information please contact Democratic Services at
democratic.services@iow.gov.uk

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1
j

Name of meeting
Date and time
Venue
Present
Also Present

AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY 27 JULY 2020 COMMENCING AT 10.00AM
MICROSOFT TEAMS MEETING
Cllrs Brian Tyndall (Chairman), Adrian Axford,
John Kilpatrick, Michael Lilley, Chris Quirk

Reg Barry,

Cllr Andrew Garratt
Kerry Hubbleday, Lizzi Goodwin, Dave Martin, Charlotte Sadler,
Claire Shand, Jo Thistlewood, Megan Tuckwell, Chris Ward
Jack Dunkley, Helen Thompson, David White (Ernst & Young)

1.

Minutes
RESOLVED :
THAT the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2020 be confirmed.

2.

Declarations of Interest
Cllr Adrian Axford declared an interest in Minute item 5, Reports of the Chief Internal
Auditor, as a family member received direct payments from the Isle of Wight Council.

3.

Approval of the Final Accounts – Update
Members were asked to note the revised timetable for the approval of the final
accounts. At the request of the external auditors - and as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic - the following items which were due for consideration at this meeting
have been slipped:
• External Audit: Letter of Representation - Isle of Wight Council
• External Audit: Letter of Representation - Isle of Wight Pension Fund
• External Audit: 2019/20 Audit Results Report for Isle of Wight Council
• External Audit: 2019/20 Audit Results Report for Isle of Wight Pension Fund
• Approval of the Final Accounts
The statutory deadline for the approval of the accounts had been moved to the 30
November 2020 and these items would now be considered at the next meeting, on
28 September 2020.
RESOLVED:
THAT the revised timetable for the approval of the final accounts be noted.
Page 5

4.

Reports of the External Auditor, Ernst & Young
The External Auditors provided an update with regards to the progress with the
audits of the Isle of Wight Council and Isle of Wight Pension Fund for the year ended
31 March 2020. Members were advised that the audit of the Isle of Wight Council
has been conducted entirely remotely and was progressing well. Members were
advised that the audit of the Isle of Wight Pension Fund had commenced during the
first week of June and all substantive testing was complete. The anticipated
completion date for both Audits was before the next meeting of the Audit committee
to be held in September 2020. The Technical Finance Manager was thanked by the
external auditors for the support throughout the Audit.
The External Auditors presented the report on the revised External Audit Plan for
the Isle of Wight Council. It was advised that some risks had been re-evaluated in
light of the COVID-19 pandemic since the audit plan was presented in March
2020This included the impact on the valuation of investment property and the
degree of uncertainty around this due to the valuations being based on market
related factors. The committee heard that these valuations should be dealt with
using a greater degree of caution but were reliable. Other areas of risk were brought
to the committee’s attention and how they would be monitored by internal specialists
throughout August 2020.
Members were advised on how working remotely had impacted the audit and how
certain aspects of the audit would be undertaken, including the utilisation of
technology that allows virtual meetings and screen sharing. It was clarified that
before an opinion could be issued on any set of accounts an internal consultation
process would be required. The external auditors explained that this is not specific
to the council and all audits follow this process.
Questions were raised regarding the valuation of investment properties, and it was
clarified that this would depend on the final decision made by the auditors.
Questions were raised regarding the small number of properties and whether they
would be checked to see if they were still operational, paying rent or were being
given a rent break. The external auditors advised that these enquiries would be
made by internal specialists.
RESOLVED:
THAT the reports of the external auditor, Ernst and Young, be noted.

5.

Reports to the Chief Internal Auditor
a)

Isle of Wight Council Annual Audit Report, and Internal Audit Progress
Report
The Chief Internal Auditor was in attendance to present the reports.
Duplications in the reports were addressed and it was explained this was due
to the timings of the reports. The committee heard how there are several high
risks included in the reports and context was given on these by explaining
how data analytics are used in the audit. This enables them to analyse
population transactions and carry out 100 percent of analyst work. It was
explained though there are areas of high risk they are not a cause for
concern. With regards to the annual report, a level of reasonable assurance
was given. The completion of implementing agreed actions within a timely
Page 6

manner was set, and it was explained that this may influence the direction of
travel for future years on the annual opinion. it was clarified that although
highlighted this was not an area of concern. Questions were raised and
clarity was provided regarding public health outcomes and spends on leisure
centres, Nicholson Road, the Floating Bridge and Regeneration.
RESOLVED:
THAT the Isle of Wight Council Annual Audit Report, and the Internal Audit
Progress Report, be noted.
b)

Revised 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan
The Chief Internal Auditor presented the report. The committee heard how
work had adapted in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, and though many are
electronic records there are still manual records that need to be seen. Any
fundamental changes would be brought back to the committee once the audit
has been completed and manual records have been obtained. It was noted
that in the revised plan there was a planned second follow up for any actions
that have remained open..
Questions were raised regarding references to modern slavery. The Chief
Internal Auditor explained that guidance set out by Government requiring this
to be included in the Audit.
RESOLVED:
THAT the revised 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan be approved.

At the conclusion of the discussion members adjourned for a comfort break.
6.

The Council’s Risk Profile
The Transformation and Business Improvement Manager (Strategy) was in
attendance to present the report. The revised risk scores were discussed
individually, and the key changes were explained. Members noted that; staff from
facilities such as Leisure Centres and Libraries had been re-deployed to assist with
the councils response to COVID-19, and the roll-out of corporate equipment to
enable staff to work from home had been largely successful.
Discussion took place regarding the remote working, including the impact on mental
health. It was confirmed that staff would be given regular opportunities to attend
administrative buildings and engage with team members, however it was expected
that some services would not retain previous office spaces. Members were advised
that data for exam results would not be published by the Local Authority this year
because of the revised assessment process. Services for children vulnerable to
abuse remained fully operational throughout and a greater proportion of face to face
visits were being undertaken.
Discussion took place regarding levels of risk around Brexit, and members sought
further information around the mitigation needed t in case of a second wave in the
winter. It was advised that as the impact increases additional measures would be
put in place and monitored closely. Additional questions were raised regarding the
Page 7

risks surrounding the Highways PFI contract and the Amey waste contract, and it
was agreed that going forward these would be reported on separately.
It was advised that the risk in relation to Pandemics had increased to the maximum
level due to financial consequences of the emergency, and the Assistant Director of
Finance provided an update in relation to the Pandemic section of the Strategic Risk
Register, with particular regard to the financial aspects. The committee heard that
the estimated financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic at this time was
approximately £10 million pounds, following emergency funding from the
government.
RESOLVED:
THAT the strategic risks of the council as set out in Paper F, paragraph 11 and
Appendix 1, be noted.
7.

Annual Governance Statement & progress against previous ASG issues
Members expressed disappointment that no officer was in attendance to present
this report. Discussion took place regarding the report and concerns were raised
regarding those individuals who do not have access to technology and were
required to participate in processes that require IT usage.
RESOLVED:
THAT the Annual Governance Statement 2019-20 be approved.

8.

Treasury Management Strategy
The Technical Finance Manager presented the report and provided an update on
the plans to not revise the Strategy (as approved by the Committee in March 2020)
as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Members were advised that the medium-term
global economic outlook was weak, and the UK bank rate was to remain at 0.1%
with a possibility of a cut to 0% within the calendar year. Questions were raised
regarding the percentage rates on borrowed money, specifically Lenovo loans. The
Technical Finance Manager advised the loan was taken out over a 45-year period
24 years ago therefore further information on this was limited. Further questions
were raised regarding leftover monies from grant payments and whether this could
be used in other ways. The Technical Finance Manager advised that any funds not
spent would need to be paid back.
RESOLVED:
THAT the update regarding the Treasury Management Strategy be noted.

9.

Procurement Half-Yearly Report
The Director of Corporate Services presented the report. The committee heard
additional commentary regarding how procurement activities had been managed
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, and it was explained how overall there had not
been a large change in general activity. Attention was brought to the work being
done to establish a contract database, ensuring all contracts are managed and
tracked against milestones effectively. The report suggested that there had not been
a large change in the number of wavers requested, however there had been a higher
Page 8

value in the wavers themselves due to the commissioning of necessary residential
placements. It was explained as a result of COVID-19 there has been some delay
in delivering the action plan.
Questions were raised regarding the fluctuation on the procurement of residential
homes and it was advised that COVID-19 did present a slightly different situation
regarding what placements were required. Members were reassured that
placements were sufficiently robust to maintain safety for the children that required
placements during that period.
Questions were raised regarding how many children were included in each contract.
The Director of Corporate Services advised that she believed they may only be for
one child (as residential placements can be costly due to the nature of the specific
requirements) however, the Children Services managers do not enter into the
expensive arrangements lightly. It was suggested that the Director of Corporate
Services review of all the transactions taken place during the COVID-19 pandemic.
Further information was sought with regards to where additional costs or savings
had been made, and the Director of Corporate Services advised that this would be
included within future reports to the Audit Committee.
RESOLVED:
THAT the Procurement Half Yearly Report be noted.

CHAIRMAN

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Isle of Wight Council and Isle of
Wight Pension Fund
Audit Committee Progress Report
September 2020

Page 11

Ernst & Young LLP
Grosvenor House
Grosvenor Square
Southampton
SO15 2BE

Tel: +44 23 8038 2000
Fax: +44 23 8038 2001
ey.com

Audit Committee
Isle of Wight Council
County Hall
High Street
Newport
Isle of Wight
PO30 1UD

Audit Progress Report
We are pleased to attach our Audit Progress Report.
Its purpose is to provide the Audit Committee with an overview of the progress of our 2019/20 audits, as
well as to ensure our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.
We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you as well as understand whether there are
other matters which you consider may influence our audits.
Yours faithfully

Helen Thompson
Associate Partner
For and behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Page 12

Progress on 2019/20 audits
Our 2019/20 audits are well progressed. Below, we provide a summary of the main areas which
remain outstanding at mid-September 2020 and an explanation for the currently expected reporting
timescales for the audits. As a reminder, the Accounts and Audit Regulations have been amended for
2019/20, and the date by which councils are expected to publish their financial statements for the year
is 30 November 2020.

Explanation for reporting timescales
Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (as
subsequently amended), local electors have certain rights with regard to the financial statements of
the Council, which can be exercised within a stipulated 30 working-day period following the
publication of the draft financial statements for the year. Please see https://www.nao.org.uk/codeaudit-practice/wp-content/uploads/sites/29/2015/03/Council-accounts-a-guide-to-your-rights.pdf for
further information on these rights.

During this period for 2019/20, we received two separate objections (each in multiple parts) from local
electors, and a further fourteen emails from other electors in support of these objections. They pertain
to the accounts of Newport Harbour which, whilst compiled separately, are also included within the
transactions and balances summarised in the Council’s main financial statements.

We are required to consider and respond appropriately to these objections – a detailed, step-by-step
process which takes time to complete. We are currently undertaking our initial review of the
objections, and therefore remain at a relatively early stage in this process. We do not anticipate
having completed this initial review until late September at the earliest.

We need to undertake sufficient work with regard to the objections to understand whether a material
adjustment could arise to the Council’s financial statements before we are able to issue our audit
results report, opinion and value for money conclusion for the Council for 2019/20. If this cannot be
done by 30 November 2020, we will discuss the impact of this for both the Council and the Pension
Fund with the Director of Finance and Chair of the Audit Committee as soon as possible.

We intend to present our audit results reports, setting out the work completed in relation to the risks
identified in our audit planning reports, for the Council and the Pension Fund to the November 2020
Audit Committee.

Isle of Wight Council – key outstanding areas
The below list sets out the key areas which remain ongoing (it is not exhaustive). Work in these areas
is largely well progressed; we have briefly summarised the main outstanding elements in each case.


Completion of payroll testing – working with officers in the payroll department to obtain the
reports/information needed to conclude our work in this area



Completion of pensions testing – awaiting report from the pension fund auditor (see pension
fund audit update below), and resolution of some technical matters

Page 13



Completion of work on valuation of land & buildings and investment property – awaiting
information from the Council’s valuers in response to queries raised by our internal valuations
specialists, and completion of testing being performed by the local audit team (which will be
informed by the specialist’s work)



Completion of residual work on income, borrowings and disclosures



Review of Council’s going concern assessment – provided by officers, review by audit team is
in progress



Internal consultation on form of our audit opinion (mandated risk management process, which
links to going concern and valuations above) – will be commenced when timing of our audit
opinion becomes clearer



Completion of general audit procedures and concluding procedures – awaiting year-end letter
from management for some general audit procedures; concluding procedures to be
completed when majority of above areas are cleared.



Completion of internal review processes – ongoing process throughout the audit.

Isle of Wight Pension Fund – audit status update
We have substantially completed the audit of the Pension Fund‘s financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and have performed the procedures outlined in our audit planning report.
Subject to satisfactory completion of our wrap up procedures, and following the conclusion of the
audit of Isle of Wight Council, we expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Isle of Wight Pension
Fund’s financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the Pension Fund financial statements we issue a consistency opinion
between the audited financial statements and the Pension Fund Annual report. We are due to
complete this consistency check in October 2020.

We also perform ‘agreed upon procedures’ on behalf of the Isle of Wight Council audit team who
instruct us to perform testing over the completeness and accuracy of the data sent from the Pension
Fund to the Council’s actuary. We have completed the majority of the agreed upon procedures, with
only a sample of membership data outstanding at the time of this report.

Page 14

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
Ernst & Young LLP
© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All rights reserved.
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England
and Wales with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst &
Young Global Limited.
Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Purpose: For Noting

Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date

28 SEPTEMBER 2020

Title

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Report of

CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

Internal Audit provide periodic, summary in-year reporting to the Audit Committee
regarding progress with the Annual Internal Audit Plan. The purpose of this reporting
is to provide the committee with the necessary information to satisfy their remit, as
set out in the committee’s terms of reference in the constitution.

2.

The committee is asked to note the report, seeking any clarifications necessary to
satisfy their remit, either with Internal Audit regarding the findings of individual reports,
or from line management regarding the progress of remedial action.

BACKGROUND
3.

The last Internal Audit Progress Report was presented to Audit Committee in July
2020. The report presented to the September 2020 committee meeting summarises
the results of audits finalised between 26 June 2020 and 1 September 2020.

CONSULTATION
4.

Consultation takes place with the senior management team, both to inform the
content of the annual Internal Audit programme of reviews and in year, to ensure that
the work of Internal Audit is continuously aligned with the need of the council.
Consultation also takes place with relevant managers for individual reviews, both to
inform review scope and to confirm the accuracy of audit findings.

FINANCIAL / BUDGET IMPLICATIONS
5.

There are no financial implications for the Council from the committee fulfilling its
remit through overseeing the work of Internal Audit.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
6.

The council has an obligation under Regulation 5 of the Account and Audit
Regulations 2015 to undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the
Page 17

effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into
account
public
sector
internal
auditing
standards
or
guidance.
7.

The relevant public sector internal auditing standards/guidance are contained in the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (updated 2017).

RECOMMENDATION
8.

The committee is asked to note the report of Internal Audit.

APPENDICES
9.

Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Progress Report – 28 September 2020

Contact Point: Elizabeth Goodwin, Chief Internal Auditor
 821000 e-mail Elizabeth.Goodwin@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
COUNCILLOR REGINALD BARRY
Chairman of the
Audit Committee

CHRIS WARD
Director of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

Page 18

I S L Eo
WIGH T
COUNCIL
Page 19

Elizabeth Goodwin, Chief Internal Auditor

Appendix 1

Internal Audit Progress Report 1st September 2020

Internal Audit Progress Report

1.

Introduction

Internal Audit is a statutory function for all local authorities. The Isle of Wight Council's Internal Audit service has an in-house team and a shared Chief
Internal Auditor with Portsmouth City Council (PCC). The in-house audit team is supported by audit and counter fraud staff from PCC under a collaborative
working arrangement.
The requirement for an Internal Audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 as to:
Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance

Page 20

The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards – updated 2017].

2.

Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to update the Audit Committee on the progress of the 2020/21 Audit Plan as at 1st September 2020 and to highlight any
significant risk exposure and control issues, including fraud and governance risks.

Page 2

Internal Audit Progress Report

3.

Assurance Levels

Internal Audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management, control and
governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives for the area under review.

Assurance Level

Description / Examples
No issues or minor improvements noted within the audit but based on the testing conducted, assurance can be placed
that the activity is of low risk to the Authority

Assurance
Reasonable Assurance
Limited Assurance
Page 21

No Assurance

Control weaknesses or risks were identified but overall the activities do not pose significant risks to the Authority
Control weaknesses or risks were identified which pose a more significant risk to the Authority
Major individual issues identified or collectively a number of issues raised which could significantly impact the overall
objectives of the activity that was subject to the Audit

Audits rated No Assurance are reported in their entirety to Audit Committee along with Director’s comments

Page 3

Internal Audit Progress Report

4.

Exception Risk Ranking

The following table outline the exceptions raised in audit reports, reported in priority order and are broadly equivalent to those previously used.

Priority Level Description
Low Risk
(Improvement)

Medium Risk

Very low risk exceptions or recommendations that are classed as improvements that are intended to help the service fine tune its control framework
or improve service effectiveness and efficiency. An example of an improvement recommendation would be making changes to a filing system to
improve the quality of the management trail.

These are control weaknesses that may expose the system function or process to a key risk but the likelihood of the risk occurring is low.

Page 22

High Risk

Action needs to be taken to address significant control weaknesses but over a reasonable timeframe rather than immediately. These issues are not
‘show stopping’ but are still important to ensure that controls can be relied upon for the effective performance of the service or function. If not
addressed, they can, over time, become critical. An example of an important exception would be the introduction of controls to detect and prevent
fraud.

Critical Risk

Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only the system function or process objectives but also the achievement of the
Council’s objectives in relation to: The efficient and effective use of resources, The safeguarding of assets, The preparation of reliable financial and
operational information, Compliance with laws and regulations and corrective action needs to be taken immediately.

Any critical exceptions found will be reported in their entirety to the Audit Committee along with Director’s comments

Page 4

Internal Audit Progress Report

5.

Follow-up Action Categorisation

The following table outlines the follow up categories used to describe the outcome of follow up testing completed.

Page 23

Follow Up Categories

Description

Open

No action has been taken on agreed action.

Pending

Actions cannot be taken at the current time but steps have been taken to prepare.

In Progress

Progress has been made on the agreed action however they have not been completed.

Implemented but not Effective

Agreed action implemented but not effective in mitigating the risk.

Closed: Verified

Agreed action implemented and risk mitigated, verified by follow up testing.

Closed: Not Verified

Client has stated action has been completed but unable to verify via testing.

Closed: Management Accepts Risk

Management have accepted the risk highlighted from the exception.

Closed: No Longer Applicable

Risk exposure no longer applicable.

Page 5

Internal Audit Progress Report

6.

Audit Plan Progress

Status Overall

Status By Directorate*

Final, 13%

Draft, 15%

Page 24

Pending,
59%

20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0

Final
Draft
Fieldwork
Pending

Fieldwork,13%

Status (including follow-ups)

Audits

Pending

36

Fieldwork

8

Draft

9

Final

8

TOTAL*

62

* Certifying Supporting Families grants is carried throughout
the year.

Page 6

There are 62 reviews set out in the revised Audit Plan for 2020/21, post COVID19; a mixture of
full and follow-up audits, grant certifications and additional reviews, specifically focussed on
COVID19 related initiatives.
This level of coverage represents an increase from the coverage provided prior to the
partnership with Portsmouth City Council (PCC) and is appropriate for the size and range of
responsibilities held by the Isle of Wight Council.
All reviews included in the 2020/21 programme of work are included in summary information
on this page. Detail regarding changes to the Audit Plan is provided in the
‘Audit Status’ section, later in this report.

Internal Audit Progress Report

7.

Audits in Period

Summaries for reports finalised since the last meeting of the Audit Committee in July 2020 are provided below.
Grant Verification: Bus Subsidy
Exceptions Raised

Overall Assurance Level

Critical

High

Medium

Low

0

0

0

0

Assurance

Assurance Level by Scope Area
Achievement of strategic objectives
Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations

NAT
Assurance

Safeguarding of Assets

NAT

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations

NAT

Reliability and Integrity of Data

NAT

Page 25

Testing evidenced that the Authority received permission from the Department for Transport (DfT) to roll the 19/20 funding into the 2020/21 financial
year.
Grant Verification: Local Transport Capital Funding
Exceptions Raised

Overall Assurance Level

Critical

High

Medium

Low

0

0

0

0

Assurance

Assurance Level by Scope Area
Achievement of strategic objectives
Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations

NAT
Assurance

Safeguarding of Assets

NAT

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations

NAT

Reliability and Integrity of Data

NAT

Testing was able to evidence sufficient capital expenditure to allow the Chief Internal Auditor to sign the declaration confirming the grant conditions had
been complied with.

Page 7

Internal Audit Progress Report

8.

Follow-up Audits in Period

Updates are provided below for follow-up activity, finalised since the last meeting of the Audit Committee in July 2020.
Beach Huts
Original Exceptions Raised

Original Assurance Level

Critical

High

Medium

Low

0

0

1

1

Original Action Date: October 2019
Revised Action Date: September 2020

Reasonable Assurance

Follow-up Assurance Level
Reasonable Assurance

Control design issues have been addressed, with comprehensive documentation now in place. While likely future income is clearer, until all agreements
with Beach Hut holders have been completed income projection reporting cannot be finalised.

1

Income Projection Reporting
Medium Work is ongoing, to finalise agreements with Beach Huts holders, once these are finalised income projections will be
revisited, to ensure management have access to accurate information on which to base their decisions.

Page 26

2

Low

In Progress

Processing Notes
Processing notes have now been produced, covering the management of beach huts.

Water Safety
Original Exceptions Raised

Original Assurance Level

Critical

High

Medium

Low

0

0

2

2

Original Action Date: October 2019
Revised Action Date: September 2020

Reasonable Assurance

Closed

Follow-up Assurance Level
Reasonable Assurance

Immediate, operational issues identified through the audit have been addressed, strategic enhancements have been delayed due to COVID19.

1

Medium

2

Page 8

Low

Strategic Framework
While work has commenced towards drafting a Strategic Framework this has been delayed, due to COVID19.
Council Services
This action is dependent on the finalisation of the Strategic Framework, as it relates to reviewing what Council services are
provided at different locations and what the Council is trying to achieve through provision. As such this action cannot be
addressed until the strategic direction is finalised.

In Progress

Pending

Internal Audit Progress Report
Water Quality Information
Processes to ensure published information is both accurate and up to date are now functioning effectively.

Closed

Life Saving equipment
Medium Glasdons have been re-inspected and repaired equipment, further evaluation of future provision is dependent on the
finalisation of the Strategic Framework above and has consequently been delayed.

In Progress

3
4

Low

Independent Fostering
Original Exceptions Raised

Original Assurance Level

Critical

High

Medium

Low

0

0

1

2

Original Action Date: February 2020
Revised Action Date: n/a

Follow-up Assurance Level

Reasonable Assurance

Assurance

Documentation issues regarding IPAs have been addressed, with better integration between children’s evolving needs and placement provision.

Page 27

1

Signing of Independent Placement Agreements (IPAs)
Medium All IPAs finalised during 2020/21 have been returned signed and in a timely manner. Process documentation has been
revised, highlighting that only IPAs received from known email addresses will be accepted.

Closed

2

Low

Reviews
IPAs are now actively updated, to reflect changes from reviews and meetings to ensure that social work teams are fully
aware of this requirement have either been held or are scheduled.

Closed

3

Low

Form Fs
Form Fs (detail regarding fosterers) are now consistently held alongside IPAs.

Closed

Page 9

Internal Audit Progress Report

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND)
Original Exceptions Raised
Critical

High

Medium

Low

0

2

0

0

First Follow-up
Original Action Date: June 2019
Revised Action Date: March 2020

Second Follow-up

Reasonable Assurance

Assurance

Education Health and Care (EHC) needs assessment performance is ahead of national average and robust action has been taken, to ensure that Education
Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) are reviewed by schools, with the central Capita system kept up to date.

1

Page 28

2

High

Education Health and Care (EHC) needs assessment
Regular reporting is produced, against deadlines; these are provided to senior management. While there are still a small
number of instances where deadlines are still being missed performance on the Island is ahead of the national average.

Closed

High

Education Health and Care Plans (EHCPs)
Alerts are sent to schools highlighting reviews required and their due dates, with information updated centrally on the
Capita system. If not received in a timely manner a review confirmation is chased centrally, until satisfactorily resolved.

Closed

Income Management
Original Exceptions Raised

First Follow-up

Critical

High

Medium

Low

0

1

1

0

Original Action Date: September 2019
Revised Action Date: March 2020

Second Follow-up

Reasonable Assurance

Assurance

Procedural documentation has been updated and good financial practice by Floating Bridge staff promoted. With the removal of the option for cash
payments there are no longer any unexplained discrepancies between system reported and actual income.

1
2

High

TransIQ system
The Floating Bridge now only takes contactless payments and there are no unexplained discrepancies between system
reported and actual income.

Floating Bridge procedures
Medium A specific list of key requirements has been provided to all floating bridge staff, regarding their management of cash. Sign
off slips, confirming further guidance has been read, has also been completed.

Page 10

Closed

Closed

Internal Audit Progress Report
Nicholson Road
Original Exceptions Raised

Original Assurance Level

Critical

High

Medium

Low

0

1

2

0

Original Action Date: December 2019
Revised Action Date: N/A

Follow-up Assurance Level

Limited Assurance

Assurance

The 2018/19 audit focussed on the Council’s management of the Nicholson Road initiative. While the initiative remains marginally viable gaps identified in
the original review have been substantively addressed, with improved record keeping. This will provide members with the correct information to inform
the decision at the Full Business Case (FBC) stage as to whether/how to best to progress the initiative.

1

High

Viability
Costs have been bottomed out as fully as possible at the current time, towards informing a robust business case for
decision by members. No further actions are pending at the current time.

Page 29

2

Planning/Documentation
Medium Recommended actions in the Outline Business Case (OBC) have been revisited, to ensure that as much of the ‘preparatory
work’ as possible had been completed. The Council now has an internally management project plan.

3

Medium

Page 11

Governance/Change
Authorities are now quantified/documented and minutes provide a clear record of decisions/discussions.

Closed

Closed
Closed

Internal Audit Progress Report

9.

Audit Status

The table below summarises audit status including detail regarding audits now scheduled, either where the area of focus had not been confirmed at the
time the 20120/21 Audit Plan (revised, post COVID19) was produced or where changes have been made subsequently, for example to respond to service
requirements, in year.
Audit
Grant Verification:
Supporting Families

Directorate > Service

Status

Childrens Services > Social Care

Ongoing

Actual/
Projected Revised

Assurance
Level

Comments

Page 30

All

All

Children with Disability Childrens Services > Social Care Fieldwork

Q2

Q2

School 1

Childrens Services > Education

Q3

Schools scheduled for review will be confirmed in
September 2020.

School 2

Childrens Services > Education

Q3

Schools scheduled for review will be confirmed in
September 2020.

Deputyships/
Appointeeships

Adult Services >

Q3

Safeguarding (ASC)

Adult Services >

Q4

Accounts Payable (AP) Resources > Business Centre

Q3

Accounts Receivable
(AR)

Resources > Business Centre

Q3

Bank and Cash

Resources > Business Centre

Q3

Council Tax and NNDR Resources > Business Centre

Q3

Page 12

Certification is carried out in-year.

Internal Audit Progress Report
Audit

Directorate > Service

Status

Actual/
Projected Revised

Housing Benefits

Resources > Business Centre

Q3

Payroll

Resources > Business Centre

Q3

Insurance

Resources > Legal Services

Fieldwork

Council Digital Strategy
Resources > IT
(New iwight.com)

Q2
Q3

Page 31

Resources > Democratic
Services

Freedom of
Information
(FOI)/Subject Access
Requests (SARs)

Resources > Legal Services

Draft

Q2

Q2

Modern Slavery

Resources > Legal Services

Draft

Q2

Q2

Annual Governance
Statement (AGS)

Resources > Business
Effectiveness

Contracts

Resources > Legal Services

Homes in Multiple
Occupancy (HMOs)

Neighbourhoods >
Regulatory Services

Q3

Asset Management
(Property)

Regeneration > Property

Q4

School
(Landlord)/Asbestos

Regeneration > Property

Page 13

Comments

Q2

Ethics

Financial Management
Regeneration
(Regeneration)

Assurance
Level

Q3

Q3
Draft

Q2

Q2

Fieldwork

Q2

Q2

Fieldwork

Q3

Q3

Originally scheduled for 2019/20; postponed to
2020/21 due to COVID19.

Internal Audit Progress Report
Audit
Island Plan

Directorate > Service

Status

Final

Q2

Q2

Fieldwork

Q2

Q2

Grant Verification:
Local Transport Capital Finance
Funding

Final

Q2

Q2

School Financial
Management Standard Finance
(SFVS)

Draft

Q1

Q1

Fieldwork

Q2

Q2

Grant Verification:
Disabled Facilities

Finance

Assurance
Level

Comments
Originally scheduled for 2019/20; postponed to
2020/21 due to COVID19.

Q3

Regeneration > Planning

Grant Verification: Bus
Finance
Subsidy

Actual/
Projected Revised

Page 32

Lifeline Grant

COVID Related

Test & Trace Grant

COVID Related

Q2

Grant verification.

Business Grant

COVID Related

Q2

Grant verification.

Grant verification.

Infection Control Grant COVID Related

Fieldwork

Q2

Q2

Grant verification.

Assurance Reporting

Fieldwork

Q2

Q2

Post COVID 19 Central Government requirement envisage will cover provider payment, equipment
distribution, vouchers etc..

Page 14

COVID Related

Internal Audit Progress Report

Audit

Directorate > Service

Status

Projected

Actual/
Revised

Assurance
Level

Comments

F o l l o w - u p R e vi e w s
During 2020/21 Internal Audit will follow-up all findings raised during 2019/20, rated as medium risk or higher. For each applicable 2019/20 audit separate
follow-up reviews will be carried out during 2020/21, in four phases from quarter one, as detailed below. Due to a high number of actions remaining ‘open’
from 2019/20 follow-up reviews (covering actions raised in 2018/19 audits) a number of additional follow-up reviews have been scheduled for 2020/21, as
detailed below.
Beaulieu House

Childrens Services > Social Care

Q4

Bembridge Primary
School

Childrens Services > Education

Q3

Page 33

Independent Fostering Childrens Services > Social Care

Final

Q1

Q1

Home to School Transport was audited in 2018/19.
Due to COVID19 follow-up review was postponed
from 2019/20 to 2020/21.

Home to School
Transport

Childrens Services > Education

Special Education
Needs & Disability

Childrens Services > Education

Final

Q2

Q2

School: Barton

Childrens Services > Education

Draft

Q2

Q2

School: Binstead

Childrens Services > Education

Draft

Q2

Q2

School: Hunnyhill

Childrens Services > Education

Draft

Q2

Q2

Looked after Children
(LAC)

Childrens Services > Social Care

Page 15

Q3

Q2

Assurance

Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in

Assurance 2019/20. Further follow-up carried out in 2020/21,

confirming that all actions have now been completed.

Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in
2019/20. Further follow-up is scheduled for 2020/21,
to confirm that all actions have been completed.

Internal Audit Progress Report
Audit
Direct
Payments/Personal
Budgets

Directorate > Service

Status

Adult Services > Contract
Management

Domiciliary Care

Adult Services >

Pension
Administration

Resources > Business Centre

IT System: Paris

Resources > IT

Projected

Actual/
Revised

Assurance
Level

Comments

Q4
Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in
2019/20. Further follow-up is scheduled for 2020/21,
to confirm that all actions have been completed.

Q2
Draft

Q2

Q2

Q3

Page 34

Contract Management Resources > Legal Services

Q2

Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in
2019/20. Further follow-up is scheduled for 2020/21,
to confirm that all actions have been completed.

IT General Control

Q2

Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in
2019/20. Further follow-up is scheduled for 2020/21,
to confirm that all actions have been completed.

Q2

Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in
2019/20. Further follow-up is scheduled for 2020/21,
to confirm that all actions have been completed.

Q3

Social Media & CCTV was audited in 2018/19. Due to
COVID19 follow-up review was postponed from
2019/20 to 2020/21.

General Data
Protection Regulation
(GDPR)

Resources > IT

Resources > Legal Services

Social Media & CCTV

Resources > Legal Services

Beach Huts

Neighbourhoods > Commercial
Services

Leisure Centres

Neighbourhoods > Leisure

Water Safety

Neighbourhoods > Commercial
Services

Page 16

Final

Q1

Q1

Reasonable

Q1

Reasonable

Q4
Final

Q1

Internal Audit Progress Report
Audit

Directorate > Service

Status

Projected

Community Funerals

Neighbourhoods > Regulatory
Services

Income Management
(Floating Bridge)

Neighbourhoods > Commercial
Services

Section 106
Agreements

Regeneration > Property

Q3

Newport Harbour

Regeneration

Q4

Page 35

Regeneration > Property

Nicholson Road

Regeneration

Public Health
Outcomes

Public Health

Treasury Management Finance

Page 17

Assurance
Level

Comments

Q4
Final

Regulatory Compliance Regeneration > Property

Asset Management

Actual/
Revised

Final

Q2

Q2

confirming that all actions have now been completed.

Q3

Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in
2019/20. Further follow-up is scheduled for 2020/21,
to confirm that all actions have been completed.

Q3

Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in
2019/20. Further follow-up is scheduled for 2020/21,
to confirm that all actions have been completed.

Q2

Q2

Q3
Draft

Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in

Assurance 2019/20. Further follow-up carried out in 2020/21,

Q2

Q2

Audit was carried out in 2018/19, initial follow-up in

Assurance 2019/20. Further follow-up carried out in 2020/21,

confirming that all actions have now been completed.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Purpose: For Decision

Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date

28 SEPTEMBER 2020

Title

THE COUNCIL’S RISK PROFILE

Report of

ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE & CHIEF STRATEGY
OFFICER

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The purpose of this report is to give the committee an opportunity to review the current
position with regard to the council’s strategic risks. The committee’s terms of reference
include the provision for consideration of “the effectiveness of the council’s risk
management arrangements”.

BACKGROUND
2.

This is the second update of the Strategic Risk Register within the 2020/21 reporting
period. The risks were included within the Isle of Wight Council’s revised Corporate
Plan that was approved by Full Council in July 2019 or have been added by the
Corporate Management Team (CMT).

3.

Strategic risks are also referred to within the Quarterly Performance Management
Reports (QPMR) that are presented to Cabinet. The presentation of the Q4 report was
cancelled owing to the Covid-19 pandemic and instead was combined with the Q1
(2020/21) report reviewed at Cabinet on 10 September 2020.

4.

An updated Strategic Risk Register was included in a report to Corporate Scrutiny
Committee on 9 June 2020 regarding the Isle of Wight Council response to COVID19.

Reporting methods
5.

Updates are requested from all mitigation owners at the beginning of each month.
These updates are then added to the risk register and included in this report.

6.

All risk scoring is decided by Corporate Management Team which reviews the
Strategic Risk Register each month.

7.

Risk owners have been requested to provide timescales for the mitigating actions
associated with each risk where it is possible and appropriate to do so.
Page 37

8.

In order to see which information has been updated since the previous report in March,
any additional comments are shown in italics. Where mitigation has not been updated
the date of the last update is shown.

RISK CHANGES
9.

Amendments that Corporate Management Team (CMT) have made between the last
report to Audit Committee (27 July 2020) and this current report are summarised in the
table below (paragraph 11). The register was circulated to CMT in September 2020
and all risk owners provided additional content.

STRATEGIC CONTEXT
10.

Strategic risks are those that have the potential to prevent the council from achieving
its strategic priorities. Senior managers ‘own’ strategic risks according to their
particular responsibilities. Strategic risks are brought to the attention of Cabinet in that
they are linked to the corporate priorities of the council in the Quarterly Performance
Management Report (QPMR). The presentation of the Q4 report was cancelled owing
to the Covid-19 pandemic and instead was combined with the Q1 (2020/21) report
reviewed at Cabinet on 10 September 2020.

Page 38

11. Strategic Risk Register Summary – September 2020 (Full Strategic Risk Register can be seen in Appendix 1)
Risk
no.

Risk Title

1

Lack of financial resource
and the ability to deliver the
council’s in-year budget
strategy for 2020/21

Score
(Sept
2020)
14 RED

Score
(June
2020)
3
GREEN

Score
(March
2020)
3
GREEN

Comment
Risk has increased as it is now linked to the 2020/21 budget as opposed to the
2019/20 budget which was delivered as balanced at the end of the financial
year.
At the end of the first quarter of 2020/21 the council is forecasting a potential
budget pressure of £8.4 million.

Lack of financial resource
and the ability to deliver the
council’s medium-term
financial strategy

16 RED

16 RED

13 RED

There is a significant impact on the 2020/21 budget of the Covid-19 pandemic.
The government allocation of additional funding will be incorporated into the
budget but current indications are that there is a significant risk this will not be
sufficient to fully cover the total of additional spending and lost income.
Regular monitoring reports will be sent to the Ministry for Communities,
Housing and Local Government (MCHLG) and both CMT and Cabinet will be
kept informed of the overall impact of additional expenditure due to Covid-19

3

Insufficient staffing capacity
and skills

9
9
AMBER AMBER

6
GREEN

The ongoing pandemic situation is such that there continues to be a pressure
on staffing capacity which remains being closely monitored. Whilst many of the
related projects to mitigate this strategic risk as a result of the pandemic are
behind schedule, progress has continued to be made and work schedules are
beginning to be realigned.

Page 39

2

Staff sickness in terms of number of days, long-term absences and frequent
absence have all reduced

4

A change in organisational
culture fails to keep a pace
with the speed of
organisational change,
negatively impacting on the
delivery of the required

6
GREEN

6
GREEN

7
AMBER

A significant programme of staff engagement activity has been undertaken to
ascertain learning during the early response phase of the pandemic to inform
future working practices. This had led to the necessary plans being put in
place to refresh the council’s BIG Action Plan designed to underpin our desired
culture and organisational development. A significant amount of work during
this period has also been to focus on ensuring that all workplaces are Covid
secure in line with national guidance.

5

transformation to deliver the
corporate plan
Failure
to
improve 10
11
AMBER AMBER
educational attainment

9
AMBER

Schools have all reopened in full and early indications are that children and
young people are returning well
Preparing for annual reviews of every school with termly challenge visit and
bespoke improvement support. Process being redesigned as there will be no
attainment data.

6

Page 40

Failure to identify and 7
7
effectively manage situations AMBER AMBER
where vulnerable children are
subject to abuse

8
AMBER

8
10 RED
AMBER

8
AMBER

While some positions have needed to be advertised more than once we are
managing to progress the recruitment to vacancies to a reduction in the use of
agency staff. In addition we are “growing our own” and now have five people
going through Apprentice Social Work Degree programme.
The Care Quality Commission (CQC) has confirmed that it will be resuming
inspections from September 2020. The department has recruited a Nominated
Individual (NI) who has considerable experience as a CQC inspector. Our NI
has been conducting mock inspections of all our CQC registered services. She
has identified key progress that has been achieved in both the Adelaide and
the Gouldings and whilst we obviously need to await the CQC inspection of
both of these services (currently rated as Requires Improvement) the results of
the mock inspections suggest that all our provider services are currently
functioning well and delivering a high quality of care
In August 2020 NHS England and NHS Improvement published updated
‘discharge to assess’ requirements confirming that clinical commissioning
groups remain financially responsible for care and support costs of people
leaving hospital, or to avoid hospital admission for up to six weeks.

The service is fully operational and continues to operate as near to normal as
possible.
There has been a small rise in caseloads for Social Workers. Management
continue to scrutinise these caseloads and have recruited some additional
agency support to mitigate any increase that may occur following the full
reopening of schools while permanent staff are recruited through a national
recruitment campaign

7

Failure to recruit acceptable
quality of professional
practice across Adult Social
Care (ASC) and Housing
Needs

8

Failure to identify and 12 RED
effectively manage situations
where vulnerable adults are
subject to abuse

12 RED

10
AMBER

9

Failure to secure the required 12 RED
outcomes
from
the
integration of adult social
care and health

12 RED

10
AMBER

10

ASC care provider failure

12 RED

12 RED

N/A

11a

Failure of the Waste contract
resulting in significant
financial and operational
disruption for the council and
its residents

12 RED

12 RED

10
AMBER

Failure of the Highways PFI
contract resulting in
significant financial and
operational disruption for the
council and its residents

12 RED

11b

Although yet to be received the Department for Health and Social Care is about
to notify councils that we will need to prepare an ASC Winter plan as well as to
complete a self-assessment of local care markets strengths and vulnerabilities.
We expect formal notification of both these new requirements later in
September (together with any accompanying templates) with submission dates
likely to be in October 2020.
Construction of the Energy Recovery Plant is currently suspended following the
sub-contractors leaving the site as of 16 March due to the Covid-19 situation.
Household waste recycling centres were initially closed in line with the
government lockdown restrictions but were reopened with stringent social
distancing measures in May 2020.

12 RED

10
AMBER

Page 41

A savings programme has been established and agreed with Island Roads and
reports made to a dedicated savings board. The programme aims to deliver
savings in three phases completing in March 2021. The savings are a balance
between a requirement to achieve contract savings and maintaining acceptable
standards of service delivery.
Discussions are ongoing between the service provider and the council to
facilitate the completion of the Core Investment period of the contract
(Milestone 14).

12

Brexit - Uncertainty during 12 RED
transition period, followed by
potential legislative, funding
and policy changes after the
UK leaves the EU may
adversely affect the council
and its ability to provide
services

12 RED

12 RED

The Brexit Impact Group’s responsibilities are now a sub-set of the overall
Covid-19 Recovery cell to assess the broader economic impacts to the Isle of
Wight. A developed action plan is in place concentrating on key areas that
could impact the Isle of Wight both immediately after Brexit and in later months
and years.

13

Achieving the vision for the 12 RED
Island

12 RED

9
AMBER

The council is producing a comprehensive recovery plan looking at minimising
the economic hit the Island will take as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Of
particular focus will be the tourism, transport, agriculture and care sectors. The
recovery plan was initially agreed by Cabinet in June and any subsequent
updates to it were presented to Cabinet in September.

The programme underwent a substantive review in light of the financial impact
to the council of the Covid-19 pandemic and it’s wider impact on other
economic sectors such as housing. The results of this review were shared with
Members’ Regeneration Board in July 2020 which agreed which priorities will
be taken forward over the next 18 months. HR and financial resources will be
realigned to meet these objectives.

14

Additional demands placed
upon the Isle of Wight
Council and partners owing
to pandemic flu or similar
large-scale outbreaks

16 RED

16 RED

14 RED

The current forecast of the budget gap (as per the Delta 4 Return 31 July 2020),
indicates that the estimated gap for 2020/21 has increased to £10.7m, which
consists of additional costs of £8.2m, unachievable savings targets of £1.0m,
Income losses of 8.4m and funding losses (Council Tax and Business Rates) of
£3.4m compared to funding of £10.3m

Page 42

Further to this, the Leader presented the Deficit Recovery Strategy totalling
some £11.5m to Full Council on 15 July which in summary is as follows:
• Placing on hold schemes from the Capital Programme totalling some
£4.5m
• Use of the Corporate Contingency up to £2m (representing 60% of
the total)
• Use of the Transformation Reserve of up to £2m (representing 50%
of the uncommitted balance)
• Use of Reserves earmarked for short term risks where that risk has
now been mitigated (e.g. the pending court case regarding Christ the
King sixth form buildings which has now been successfully defended
by the council) £3m

CONSULTATION
12.

The review of each strategic risk has been undertaken by senior managers according
to their particular responsibilities. Members of the Corporate Management Team have
reviewed the strategic risk register. Cabinet members are also given the opportunity to
review risks as part of the QPMR.

FINANCIAL / BUDGET IMPLICATIONS
13.

There are no direct financial implications of this report, although many of the controls
employed to manage strategic risk do have significant financial and resource
implications.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
14.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the council reviews its system
of internal control including its risk management arrangements. This report is therefore
concerned in part with improving the way the council manages risk and also in giving
the committee the opportunity to play its part in overseeing risk management
arrangements. These are important features in the council’s governance
arrangements.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
15.

The council has a legal duty under the Equality Act 2010 to seek to eliminate
discrimination, victimisation and harassment in relation to age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation and
marriage and civil partnership. It is considered that there are no direct equality and
diversity implications of this report for any of the protected groups.

OPTIONS
16.

Option 1 -

Audit Committee approves the strategic risks of the council as set out in
paragraph 11 and Appendix 1.

Option 2 -

Audit Committee does not approve the strategic risks of the council as
set out in paragraph 11 and Appendix 1.

RISK MANAGEMENT
17.

While this report is concerned with the subject of strategic risk itself, the key risk is that
the council fails to recognise the importance of identifying, assessing and managing
strategic risk. The result would mean that risks are more likely to occur or that the
council will fail to plan for their impact.

RECOMMENDATION
Option 1 - Audit Committee approves the strategic risks of the council as set out in
paragraph 11 and Appendix 1.

Contact Point: David Martin,
Transformation and Business Improvement Manager (Strategy)
 821000 e-mail david.martin@iow.gov.ukPage 43

WENDY PERERA
Assistant Chief Executive and
Chief Strategy Officer

CLLR BRIAN TYNDALL
Cabinet Member for
Corporate Resources

Page 44

Agenda Item 8
Purpose: For Noting

Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date

28 SEPTEMBER 2020

Title

PROGRESS REPORT – COMMERCIAL ACQUISITION
STRATEGY

Report of

CABINET MEMBER FOR CORPORATE RESOURCES

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1. This noting report provides members of the Audit Committee with an overall
summary of progress in the delivery of the council’s commercial property
acquisition strategy up to 31 March 2020.
BACKGROUND
2. The council’s medium-term financial strategy, designed to help improve the
council’s financial sustainability made provision for a £100 million commercial
property acquisition fund, subject to the approval of a commercial property
acquisition strategy. Full Council at its meeting of 20 September 2017 gave its
approval to such a strategy. The report recommending the strategy also proposed
that reports should be prepared for submission to the Audit Committee, setting out
the progress of the property investment fund, including the total income that has
or will be accrued by the council on an annual basis.
3. Portsmouth City Council, as commissioned by the Isle of Wight Council, has been
managing the property investment fund. The commercial property acquisition
strategy approved by members in September 2017 has been used as the
framework for all acquisitions. The approved strategy included strict criteria to be
used when determining the property to acquire. Those criteria have been adhered
to and included the following:
•

To create a balanced commercial property portfolio that provides long term
rental returns and growth.

•

A core portfolio of property assets will be sought with a view to
diversification on individual assets by sector (industrial, offices and retail),
location and risk.

•

Core assets being the best property for the sector in an ideal location with
long term income to high quality tenants.
Page 45

•

All investments considered must initially provide income (yield) equal to or
above the councils required rate of return (IRR).

•

Prioritise properties that yield optimal rental growth and stable income.

•

Protect capital invested in acquired properties.

•

Location will be dictated by opportunity to acquire investments that meet
the strategy, proximity to the Isle of Wight will be a deciding factor when all
other attributes are equal.

4. Opened in March 2020, the government’s consultation on Public Works Loan
Board (PWLB) Future Lending Terms (now closed) has curtailed all acquisition
activity. The current property investment strategy is now under review and will be
revised following the outcome of the PWLB consultation (later this year) and in
light of the current economic conditions.
PROGRESS TO DATE
5. Current fund - statistics
5.1

To date circa £35.1 million (inclusive of all costs associated with purchase,
including land registry fee; legal expenses; due diligence and agreed costs
to Portsmouth City Council as set out in paragraph 9.2) of the £100 million
available has been invested. The acquisition of these properties occurred
throughout 2018/19 up to March 2019.

5.2

The fund has been successful in acquiring four properties containing nine
occupational tenants.

5.3

The first investment, Olympic Court, Salford was purchased in April 2018,
with the most recent purchase being Metabo Nursling in the final quarter of
2018. No further acquisitions have been made during the period 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2020.

5.4

Appendix 1 is a schedule of all assets currently held within the investment
fund.

6. Rental income
6.1

Since the first purchase, there have historically been no rent payment
defaults or loss of tenancies across the portfolio. During 2020 the impact of
Covid-19 has seen some tenants delay payment of part of the annual rent
due on the March and July 2020 quarter days. This has been actively
managed; all rent has now been recovered, and there are no tenants
presently in rental arrears. Notice has been received in September 2020
from Sunwin Services who occupy a unit in Kent that they do not wish to
renew their tenancy; due to expire in January 2021. This is as a direct
consequence of the financial impact of Covid-19 on their business. The nine
occupational tenants currently in occupation are:
• Mettler-Toledo Safeline Limited;
• In the Style Fashion Limited;
Page 46

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
6.2

Betterstore Self Storage Properties III Limited;
Eriks Industrial Services Limited;
Sunwin Services Group (2010) Limited;
Go Installations Limited;
Nedschroef Fasteners Limited;
Stagecoach Group;
Metabo UK Ltd.

Lease events in the period up to 31 March 2020 included:
• Olympic Park - Manchester - four units let to Mettler-Toledo Safeline
Ltd.
• Sandy Lane - Oxford - one unit let to Nedschroef Fasteners Ltd.
• Access 4/20 - Kent - one unit let to Go Installations Ltd - rent review
and lease renewal.

6.3

Forthcoming lease events going into 2020-21 will include the following:
•
•

Nursling, Southampton - Metabo - lease renewal and rent review.
Access 4/20, Kent - Sunwin Services - vacation, dilapidations and relet.

7. Strategy
7.1

As referenced in section 4 above, given the current implications of the
PWLB consultation the approved property investment strategy is under
review. Revisions to this strategy will be made in light of the outcome of the
PWLB consultation, and taking into account the current economic climate.
It is anticipated that the outcome of the consultation will be published later
this year and it is recommended that a further report will need to be
published to detail the revised strategy.

7.2

With a pause on acquisition activity, the immediate focus for the portfolio
will be to manage the impact of Covid-19 on existing assets and tenants
with a priority focus on continued cash flow security and debt management.
A careful and considered management approach will be necessary for any
forthcoming lease events such as rent reviews and lease end to avoid
protracted and costly court procedures and potential void risk.

7.3

Continuing to hold and actively manage these assets in the short to medium
term while the wider implications associated with PWLB and the economy
are assessed is of upmost importance. Continuing to do this will protect the
council's revenue position and allow the maximum opportunity for the
revision of strategy in due course.

8. Investment market
8.1

Investment activity in the UK commercial market has slowed in the first half
of 2020 as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. This is being
reflected across all areas of the UK Economy which has shrunk significantly
across two quarters and placed the UK in an official recession. A sharp
decline has been reported in commercial property investment and occupier
activity as a response to the economic and financial uncertainty facing
businesses.
Page 47

8.2

All property total returns comprising estimated rental growth, equivalent
yield and capital growth is forecasting a -7.1 per cent total return for 2020.
This is driven by decline in the retail and office sector. However, the
industrial and logistics sector is performing positively and is forecast to
deliver a positive 0.7 per cent total return in 2020.

8.3

Market analysis is indicating a strong demand for industrial sheds with a
particular focus on distribution and good links to highways network being
key as more businesses grow their online presence.

9. Resources
9.1

Portsmouth City Council continues to manage the fund, providing fund
management and acquisition/disposal service on behalf of Isle of Wight
Council.

9.2

Fees paid to Portsmouth City Council between 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2020 in the provision of these services totalled £60,000. No
acquisitions were made during this period and so no premium payments
were made.

STRATEGIC CONTEXT
10. The commercial property acquisition fund was a feature of the council’s mediumterm financial strategy agreed by Full Council in October 2016. The subsequent
commercial property acquisition strategy was approved by Full Council in
September 2017. Both the fund and strategy are clearly aligned with priority four
of the council’s Corporate Plan in that it contributes to “ensuring that all the
resources available to the Island are used in the most effective way in achieving
the Island’s priorities”.
FINANCIAL / BUDGET IMPLICATIONS
11. Capital growth
11.1 The primary objective for the council is to protect its capital base where
possible, maximise income and create a long-term sustainable income
stream. The fund is still in its very early stages and as such there has been
a steady flow of purchases over the period since inception of the agreed
strategy. As it matures over several years and rental income grows, the
impact of initial acquisition costs on overall performance should decrease.
11.2 The fund is valued annually on 31 March by an external valuer. Capital
values are now measurable for the whole portfolio year on year from March
2019 to March 2020. As many of the lease events had not been concluded
or taken effect at the time the valuations were assessed the capital values
have remained static, however, it is anticipated that the positive effect of
these changes should be reflected in the 2021 valuations.

Page 48

March 2018 March
value
value
Access 4:20
Aylesford,
£8,625,000
Kent
Olympic
Court,
Manchester
Network
Oxford

2019 March
value

2020 Percentage
+/since
2018
0%

£8,625,000

£8,625,000

£10,800,000

£10,970,000

£10,970,000

N/A

£10,000,000

£10,000,000

0%

£3,500,000

£3,500,000

0%

Metabo
Nursling
N/A
Southampton

1.57% +

12. Rental income (gross return)
12.1 The total gross income received for the year to 31 March 2020 was
£1.6million. (rounded up) This period takes us up to the start of the Covid19 pandemic where many businesses were forced to close.
12.2 The gross return up to March 2020 was 4.53 per cent.
13. Rental income (net return)
13.1 The cumulative net income (excluding debt costs) to the council for the year
to 31 March 2020 amounts to £ £1.518 million, this represents income of
£1.593m less management costs of £0.075 million, this represents a net
yield of 4.32%per cent.
13.2 The council incurred debt costs of £0.879 million and contributed £0.5
million towards the commercial property reserve. This reserve will be used
to fund potential lost rental income and future property related costs.
13.3 The net return (including debt costs) for 2019/20 prior to the reserve transfer
was £0.639 million, this represents a net yield of 1.82 per cent.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
14. The council is empowered to buy and sell land pursuant to section 120 – 123 of
the Local Government Act 1972. Section 1 of the Local Government Act 2003
provides that the council may borrow money for any purpose relevant to its
functions under any enactment, or for the purposes of the prudent management
of its financial affairs.
15. In order to lawfully implement the investment strategy, each proposal (including
the funding strategy for purchases) is reviewed as part of a decision to purchase
or sell, and tested for value for money, and regulatory compliance. All acquisitions
Page 49

are reviewed by the council’s in-house legal and finance teams as a means to
maintain oversight of transactions being completed.
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
16. The council, as a public body, is required to meet its statutory obligations under
the Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
promote equal opportunities between people from different groups and to foster
good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it. The protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. It is not considered that the content
of this report has any impact on any of the protected characteristics.
RISK MANAGEMENT
17. All commercial property investments carry a risk. However, the commercial
property investment strategy ensures that any risk is minimised in return for an
appropriate level of financial gain. There are clear protocols, authorisation
processes (overseen by the director of finance and section 151 officer) and due
diligence checks in place that allow for risks associated with acquisition to be fully
evaluated prior to sale completion. These protocols and processes will continue
to be reviewed in response to the evolving impact of Covid-19 on commercial
property performance.
EVALUATION
18. Full Council agreed the commercial property acquisition strategy in line with the
medium-term financial strategy in September 2017, in order to secure an income
stream that would contribute to the overall aim of future financial sustainability of
the Island’s public services. The full potential of such a strategy could see an
income stream in the region of £4.5 million a year. It is currently unclear whether
the council will be able to continue with this strategy due to the impacts mentioned
in this report at.
RECOMMENDATION
19. To note the progress in the delivery of the council’s commercial property
acquisition strategy, and that a further report will be provided detailing the
required revisions to the strategy.
APPENDICES ATTACHED
Appendix 1: Schedule of assets held.
BACKGROUND PAPERS
20. Full Council 20 September 2017 – Commercial Property as Investment Paper C
https://www.iow.gov.uk/Meetings/committees/mod-council/20-9-17/Paper%20C.pdf
Page 50

21. Audit Committee 3 December 2018 – Progress Report Commercial Acquisition
Strategy – Paper
https://www.iow.gov.uk/Meetings/committees/Audit%20Committee/3-1218/PAPER%20J%20-%20Progress%20Report%20%20Commercial%20Aquisition%20Strategy.pdf
22. Audit Committee 30 September 2019 – Progress Report Commercial Acquisition
Strategy – Paper G
https://www.iow.gov.uk/Meetings/committees/Audit%20Committee/30-919/PaperG-ProgressReport-PropertyAquisitionsStrategy.pdf
Contact Point: Tom Southall, Assistant Director Regeneration – Property and
Investment, e-mail: tom.Southall@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
CLAIRE SHAND
Director of Corporate Services

COUNCILLOR BRIAN TYNDALL
Cabinet Member for Corporate Resources

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1

Appendix 1

Metabo, Nursling, Southampton

Nov 18

£3.5m Vendor: Off-market
Rodenhurst Estates

25,000 sq ft industrial warehouse on Nursling
Industrial Estate on the outskirts of
Southampton
Let to Metabo Tools

Network Oxford

Oct 18

£10m Vendor: CBRE Investors

Modern, semi-detached warehouse built in
2008 extending to 30,136 sq ft and a 1-acre
concreted yard currently occupied as a
transport depot.
Multi-let to Nedschroef and Stagecoach

Olympic Court, Manchester

March 18

£10.8m Vendor: Goldman Sachs

5 unit multi let industrial estate of 108,639 sq
ft
2 miles from Manchester City Centre

Page 53

Access 4:20 Aylesford, Kent

April 18

£8.6m Vendor: Milton Property

5 unit multi let industrial estate of 50,000 sq ft
High quality industrial warehouse units
developed in 2006 close to the M20 motorway

Page 54

Agenda Item 9
Purpose: For Noting

Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date

28 SEPTEMBER 2020

Title

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

Report of

TECHNICAL FINANCE MANAGER

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

In accordance with the council’s Treasury Management Strategy 2019-20, this report
presents the annual report on treasury management policies, practices and activities
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

2.

In December 2019, the committee received the half-year progress report on treasury
management activities. This report updates the previous report, and includes
additional information required for the annual report.

3.

The council’s activities have fallen within the boundaries of the prudential indicators
set for the year:

4.

(a)

Due to continuing low interest rates, and the strategy to undertake short-term
borrowing, the council has incurred lower than forecast costs of borrowing for
the year, contributing positively to the overall result.

(b)

Due to continuing low interest rates, a prudent investment strategy and
reduced surplus funds for investment, the council has attracted returns on its
investments that are about on par in comparison to other local authorities who
use the same treasury management advisor, Arlingclose Limited.

The committee is asked to note this report and highlight any areas which may need
to be addressed in the forthcoming year.

BACKGROUND
5.

The council’s treasury management activity is underpinned by the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury
Management (the code), which requires authorities to produce annually prudential
indicators and a treasury management strategy statement on the likely financing and
investment activity. The code also recommends that members are informed of
treasury management activities at least twice a year.
Page 55

6.

This report, from a template provided by the council’s treasury management advisor,
Arlingclose Limited, sets out a summary of the council’s treasury management
activities during the year to 31 March 2020, and its performance against the
prudential indicators that were approved as part of the Treasury Management
Strategy.

7.

The code of practice defines treasury management as follows:
“The management of the council’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated
with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those
risks.”

8.

The code of practice requires that a report be provided on the actual performance of
the council against the following prudential indicators at the end of each financial year
and that it encompasses:
•
the revenue effect of transactions executed;
•
the risk implications for decisions made;
•
compliance on agreed policies/practices and statutory/regulatory
requirements;
•
performance report;
•
compliance with the CIPFA code recommendations;
•
monitoring of treasury management indicators.

9.

Detailed information on the council’s performance in respect of these items is set out
in Appendix A to this report.

STRATEGIC CONTEXT
10.

The council’s arrangements for treasury management support effective service and
project delivery across the authority, in turn supporting the key priorities set out in the
Corporate Plan 2019-22.

11.

There is a need for regular review of the Treasury Management Strategy, in line with
the Corporate Plan and Medium Term Financial Strategy, to ensure the key priorities
of the council continue to be deliverable within the reduced resources available to the
council.

DEBT RESTRUCTURING
12.

The council keeps under review its outstanding debt maturity profile, and periodically
considers whether it may be advantageous to repay some of its outstanding Public
Works Loan Board (PWLB) or LOBO (lender option, borrower option) loans to obtain
interest rate savings.

13.

During 2019-20, the council engaged its treasury management advisers, Arlingclose
Limited, to review whether the LOBO loan could be refinanced to generate additional
savings. It was determined that the refinancing of this loan would not be undertaken
– initially this was because the lender would not consider a refinancing deal, as it was
Page 56

not attractive to them; when the deal became attractive for the lender, it was not
financially beneficial to the council.
14.

Similarly, the council looked at whether savings could be generated from repaying
those PWLB loans with higher interest rates, and reborrowing the principle at lower
rates. Given the additional premium payable on early settlement of PWLB loans, it is
considered best value to retain the existing debt profile.

CONSULTATION
15.

The annual treasury management report has been considered by senior accountants
within the Financial Management team, including the Director of Finance and the
Assistant Director of Finance.

16.

No external consultation has been undertaken.

FINANCIAL / BUDGET IMPLICATIONS
17.

The council’s current treasury management arrangements are conducted by council
staff, with support from an external treasury management advisor, Arlingclose
Limited, within existing budgets.

18.

The Treasury Management Strategy includes the overall management of the council’s
cash flow and borrowing strategy. With interest rates continuing to be low, it was
decided to take a combination of short-term and long-term borrowing in order to
balance the requirement for low interest costs and achieving cost certainty.

19.

At the December 2019 meeting, the committee received a report which forecast net
annual savings from treasury management activities in 2019-20 of £1 million.

20.

The total net savings on treasury management activity was £1.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020, contributed towards the overall financial result of the council.

21.

The council earned interest of 0.85 per cent on average investments of £23.4 million.
This is on par with the other local authorities measured by Arlingclose Limited.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
22.

The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003
explicitly require English authorities to “have regard” to the CIPFA Code of Practice
for Treasury Management.

23.

Should the council not receive this report, it is in breach of the requirements set out
in the code and the council’s approved Treasury Management Strategy 2019-20.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
24.

The council, as a public body, is required to meet its statutory obligations under the
Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to eliminate unlawful discrimination, promote
equal opportunities between people from different groups and to foster good relations
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share
it. The protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage
Page 57

and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation.
25.

The annual treasury management report has no implications for any of the protected
characteristics.

RISK MANAGEMENT
26.

Treasury management activities have a high level of risk in that they relate to
transactions that can amount to several million pounds which are undertaken with
external bodies. When the council has surplus monies to invest, there are risks if
those organisations to whom it lends default on repayment. The costs to the council
of its treasury management activities are dependent on fluctuating interest rates.

27.

The overall strategy of borrowing short-term and avoiding long-term debt carries the
risk that, if interest rates suddenly rise, when longer term debt is eventually required,
it will cost more.

28.

The council manages these risks by adopting a treasury management strategy which
includes maintaining a limited list of organisations to which it is authorised to lend and
restricting the maximum amount to be invested with each organisation, based on
advice obtained from its external treasury management advisor, Arlingclose Limited.
It also operates protocols for maintaining financial controls.

29.

The council is obliged under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to make
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs. Failure to comply
with the code could result in adverse comments being raised by the council’s external
auditors.

30.

The committee’s overview of the council’s treasury management arrangements plays
an important part in the council’s overall governance regime. It has an important role
to play in the monitoring of treasury management activities, including overview of the
risks faced by this function both internally, which are directly controllable through
segregation of duties and reporting arrangements, and externally, controllable
through the monitoring of counterparties and lending limits, and also regular
monitoring of general economic factors.

EVALUATION
31.

The council’s treasury management activities for the year ended 31 March 2020 have
fallen within the boundaries of the agreed strategy for 2019-20.

RECOMMENDATION
32.

That the committee notes the performance for the year ended 31 March 2020
against the treasury management indicators.

APPENDICES ATTACHED
33.

Appendix A – Treasury Management Performance Report 2019/20.
Page 58

BACKGROUND PAPERS
34.

Treasury Management Strategy 2019-20 (Audit Committee 18 February 2019,
Paper F)
https://www.iow.gov.uk/Meetings/committees/Audit%20Committee/18-2-19/PaperFTreasuryManagementStrategy.pdf

35.

Treasury Management Half-yearly progress report (Audit committee, 2 December
2019, Paper C)
https://www.iow.gov.uk/Meetings/committees/Audit%20Committee/2-12-19/PaperCTreasuryManagementHalfYearReport2019-20.pdf

Contact Point: Jo Thistlewood, Technical Finance Manager,  821000
e-mail jo.thistlewood@iow.gov.uk
CHRIS WARD
Director of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

COUNCILLOR REG BARRY
Chairman of Audit Committee
COUNCILLOR BRIAN TYNDALL
Cabinet Member for Corporate Resources

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1
Treasury Management Performance Report 2019/20
Introduction
In February 2011 the council adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the
CIPFA Code) which requires the council to approve treasury management semi-annual
and annual reports.
The council’s treasury management strategy for 2019/20 was approved at the audit
committee meeting on 18 February 2019. The council has borrowed and invested
substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss
of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful
identification, monitoring and control of risk remains central to the council’s treasury
management strategy.
Treasury risk management at the council is conducted within the framework of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the
Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the
council to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial
year and, as a minimum, a semi-annual and annual treasury outturn report. This report
fulfils the council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard
to the CIPFA Code.
The 2017 Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to provide a
Capital Strategy, a summary document approved by full council covering capital
expenditure and financing, treasury management and non-treasury investments. The
council’s Capital Strategy, complying with CIPFA’s requirement, was approved by full
council on 27 February 2019.
External Context (provided by Arlingclose Limited)
Economic background: The UK’s exit from the European Union and future trading
arrangements, had remained one of major influences on the UK economy and sentiment
during 2019/20. The 29 March 2019 Brexit deadline was extended to 12 April, then to
31 October and finally to 31 January 2020. Politics played a major role in financial
markets over the period as the UK’s tenuous progress negotiating its exit from the
European Union together with its future trading arrangements drove volatility, particularly
in foreign exchange markets. The outcome of December’s General Election removed a
lot of the uncertainty and looked set to provide a ‘bounce’ to confidence and activity.
The headline rate of UK Consumer Price Inflation UK Consumer Price Inflation fell to
1.7% year/year in February, below the Bank of England’s target of 2%. Labour market
data remained positive. The International Labour Organisation (ILO) unemployment rate
was 3.9% in the three months to January 2020 while the employment rate hit a record
high of 76.5%. The average annual growth rate for pay excluding bonuses was 3.1% in
January 2020 and the same when bonuses were included, providing some evidence that
a shortage of labour had been supporting wages.

Page 61

GDP growth in the fourth quarter of 2019 was reported as flat by the Office for National
Statistics and service sector growth slowed whilst production and construction activity
contracted on the back of what at the time were concerns over the impact of global trade
tensions on economic activity. The annual rate of GDP growth remained below-trend at
1.1%.
Then coronavirus swiftly changed everything. COVID-19, which had first appeared in
China in December 2019, started spreading across the globe causing plummeting
sentiment and falls in financial markets not seen since the Global Financial Crisis as part
of a flight to quality into sovereign debt and other perceived ‘safe’ assets.
In response to the spread of the virus and sharp increase in those infected, the
government enforced lockdowns, central banks and governments around the world cut
interest rates and introduced massive stimulus packages in an attempt to reduce some
of the negative economic impact to domestic and global growth.
The Bank of England, which had held policy rates steady at 0.75% through most of
2019/20, moved in March to cut rates to 0.25% from 0.75% and then swiftly thereafter
brought them down further to the record low of 0.1%. In conjunction with these cuts, the
UK government introduced a number of measures to help businesses and households
impacted by a series of ever-tightening social restrictions, culminating in pretty much the
entire lockdown of the UK.
The US economy grew at an annualised rate of 2.1% in the fourth quarter of 2019. After
escalating trade wars and a protracted standoff, the signing of Phase 1 of the trade
agreement between the US and China in January was initially positive for both
economies, but COVID-19 severely impacted sentiment and production in both
countries. Against a slowing economic outlook, the US Federal Reserve began cutting
rates in August. Following a series of five cuts, the largest of which were in March 2020,
the Fed Funds rate fell from of 2.5% to range of 0% - 0.25%. The US government also
unleashed a raft of COVID-19 related measures and support for its economy including
a $2 trillion fiscal stimulus package. With interest rates already on (or below) the floor,
the European Central Bank held its base rate at 0% and deposit rate at -0.5%.
Financial markets: Financial markets sold off sharply as the impact from the
coronavirus worsened. After starting positively in 2020, the FTSE 100 fell over 30% at
its worst point with stock markets in other countries seeing similar huge falls. In March
sterling touch its lowest level against the dollar since 1985. The measures implemented
by central banks and governments helped restore some confidence and financial
markets have rebounded in recent weeks but remain extremely volatile. The flight to
quality caused gilts yields to fall substantially. The 5-year benchmark falling from 0.75%
in April 2019 to 0.26% on 31 March. The 10-year benchmark yield fell from 1% to 0.4%,
the 20-year benchmark yield from 1.47% to 0.76% over the same period. 1-month, 3month and 12-month bid rates averaged 0.61%, 0.72% and 0.88% respectively over the
period.
Since the start of the calendar 2020, the yield on 2-year US treasuries had fallen from
1.573% to 0.20% and from 1.877% to 0.61% for 10-year treasuries. German bund yields
remain negative.
Credit review: In the fourth quarter of 2019 Fitch affirmed the UK’s AA sovereign rating,
Page 62

removed it from Rating Watch Negative (RWN) and assigned a negative outlook. Fitch
then affirmed UK banks’ long-term ratings, removed the RWN and assigned a stable
outlook. Standard & Poor’s also affirmed the UK sovereign AA rating and revised the
outlook to stable from negative. The Bank of England announced its latest stress tests
results for the main seven UK banking groups. All seven passed on both a common
equity Tier 1 (CET1) ratio and a leverage ratio basis. Under the test scenario the banks’
aggregate level of CET1 capital would remain twice their level before the 2008 financial
crisis.
After remaining flat in January and February and between a range of 30-55bps, Credit
Default Swap spreads rose sharply in March as the potential impact of the coronavirus
on bank balance sheets gave cause for concern. Spreads declined in late March and
through to mid-April but remain above their initial 2020 levels. NatWest Markets Plc (nonringfenced) remains the highest at 128bps and National Westminster Bank Plc
(ringfenced) still the lowest at 56bps. The other main UK banks are between 65bps and
123bps, with the latter being the thinly traded and volatile Santander UK CDS.
While the UK and Non-UK banks on the Arlingclose counterparty list remain in a strong
and well-capitalised position, the duration advice on all these banks was cut to 35 days
in mid-March.
Fitch downgraded the UK sovereign rating to AA- in March which was followed by a
number of actions on UK and Non-UK banks. This included revising the outlook on all
banks on the counterparty list to negative, with the exception of Barclays Bank,
Rabobank, Handelsbanken and Nordea Bank which were placed on Rating Watch
Negative, as well as cutting Close Brothers long-term rating to A-. Having revised their
outlooks to negative, Fitch upgraded the long-term ratings on Canadian and German
banks but downgraded the long-term ratings for Australian banks. HSBC Bank and
HSBC UK Bank, however, had their long-term ratings increased by Fitch to AA-.
Local Context
On 31 March 2020, the council had net borrowing of £212.3 million arising from its
revenue and capital income and expenditure. The underlying need to borrow for capital
purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable
reserves and working capital are the underlying resources available for investment.
These factors are summarised in Table 1 below.

Page 63

Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary
31.03.2020
Actual
£m

405.7
(101.1)
304.6
(279.3)
25.3
(83.7)
22.8
(35.6)

Total CFR

Less Other Debt Liabilities *
Borrowing CFR
External Borrowing
Internal borrowing
Less Usable Reserves
Less Working Capital
Net Investments

* finance leases, PFI liabilities and transferred debt that form part of the council’s total
debt
The council pursued its strategy of keeping borrowing and investments below their
underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing, in order to reduce risk and
keep interest costs low.
The treasury management position at 31 March 2020 and the change during the year is
shown in Table 2 below.
Table 2: Treasury Management Summary

Long-term borrowing
Short-term borrowing
Total borrowing
Short term Investments
Total investments
Net borrowing

31.03.2020 31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Movement
Balance
Balance
Rate
£m
£m
£m
%
162.9
46.4
209.3
3.22%
99.0
(29.0)
70.0
1.08%
261.9
17.4
279.3
2.76%
63.4
3.6
67.0
0.55%
63.4
3.6
67.0
0.55%
198.5
13.8
212.3
3.45%

Borrowing Update
On 9 October 2019 the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) raised the cost of certainty
rate borrowing by 1% to 1.8% above UK gilt yields as HM Treasury was concerned about
the overall level of local council debt. PWLB borrowing remains available but the margin
of 180bp above gilt yields appears relatively very expensive. Market alternatives are
available and new products will be developed; however, the financial strength of
individual authorities will be scrutinised by investors and commercial lenders.
The Chancellor’s March 2020 Budget statement included significant changes to PWLB
policy and launched a wide-ranging consultation on the PWLB’s future direction.
Announcements included a reduction in the margin on new HRA loans to 0.80% above
equivalent gilt yields also available from 12 March 2020 an £1.15bn of additional
Page 64

“infrastructure rate” funding at gilt yields plus 0.60% to support specific local council
infrastructure projects for England, Scotland and Wales for which there is a bidding
process.
The consultation titled “Future Lending Terms” represents a frank, open and inclusive
invitation, allowing key stakeholders to contribute to developing a system whereby
PWLB loans can be made available at improved margins to support qualifying projects.
It contains proposals on allowing authorities that are not involved in “debt for yield”
activity to borrow at lower rates as well as stopping local authorities using PWLB loans
to buy commercial assets primarily for yield without impeding their ability to pursue their
core policy objectives of service delivery, housing, and regeneration. The consultation
also broaches the possibility of slowing, or stopping, individual authorities from
borrowing large sums in specific circumstances.
The consultation closed on 4 June 2020 with implementation of the new lending terms
expected in the latter part of this calendar year or financial year beginning 2021/22.
Borrowing strategy during the year
At 31 March 2020 the council held £279.3 million of loans, (an increase of £17.4 million),
as part of its strategy for funding previous and current years’ capital programmes.
Outstanding loans on 31 March are summarised in Table 3 below.
Table 3: Borrowing Position
31.03.19
Balance
£m
Public Works Loan Board
Banks (LOBO)
Banks (fixed term)
Local authorities (long-term)
Local authorities (short-term)
Total borrowing

157.9
5.0
99.0
261.9

Net
Movement
£m
46.4
(29.0)
17.4

31.03.20 31.03.2020
Weighted Weighted
Average
Average
Rate
Maturity
%
(years)
204.3
3.30%
16.25
5.0
4.27%
21.67
70.0
1.08%
0.58
279.3
2.76%
12.03

31.03.20
Balance
£m

The council’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an appropriately low risk
balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty over the period
for which funds are required, with flexibility to renegotiate loans should the council’s longterm plans change being a secondary objective.
In keeping with these objectives, it was decided that the council would take advantage
of the reduction in PWLB rates at specific periods in order to obtain the certainty of the
relatively low interest rates. In addition, a number of short-term loans have not been
renewed when they matured.
The council has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme and an estimated
borrowing requirement as determined by the Liability Benchmark which also takes into
Page 65

account usable reserves and working capital. Having considered the appropriate
duration and structure of the borrowing need based on realistic projections, it was
decided to take a combination of short-term borrowing and longer-term Equal Instalment
of Principal (EIP) loans. The council borrowed £55 million longer-term fixed rate loans,
details of which are below. These loans provide some longer-term certainty and stability
to the debt portfolio.
Table 4: Long-dated Loans borrowed 2019-20
Long-dated Loans borrowed
PWLB EIP Loan 1
PWLB EIP Loan 2
PWLB EIP Loan 3

Amount
£m
20
15
20
55

Rate
%
1.89%
1.06%
1.89%

Period
Years
25
11.5
20

As this year has illustrated, PWLB funding margins have lurched quite substantially and
there remains a strong argument for diversifying funding sources, particularly if rates can
be achieved on alternatives which are below gilt yields plus 0.80%, i.e. the PWLB HRA
borrowing rate. The council will evaluate and pursue these lower cost solutions and
opportunities with its advisor Arlingclose.
The council continues to hold £5 million of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option)
loans where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest rate as set
dates, following which the council has the option to either accept the new rate or to repay
the loan at no additional cost. No banks exercised their option during the year.
Other Debt Activity
Although not classed as borrowing, the council also raised £17.5 million of capital
finance for Highway Improvements via Private Finance Initiative during the 2019/20
financial year. Total debt other than borrowing stood at £129.9 million on 31 March 2020,
taking total debt to £409.2 million.
Treasury Investment Activity
The council holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. During the year, the council’s investment
balances ranged between £41 and £105.6 million due to timing differences between
income and expenditure. During the year the council maintained balances of up to £10
million in the council’s current bank account, in addition to the amounts invested.
Due to the changes in council working practices at the end of the financial year, as a
result of the pandemic situation, staff were unable to access the national portal for
dealing in money market funds via the internet. Accordingly, the decision was taken to
disinvest from all money market funds at year end, with the exception of one notice
Page 66

account, and invest all surplus funds with the central government Debt Management
Office.
The investment position is shown in table 5 below.
Table 5: Treasury Investment Position

0.60%

31.03.2020
Weighted
Average
Maturity
days
1

0.50%
1.02%

191
232

0.27%

93

0.85%

104

31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Net
31.03.2020
Income
Balance Movement
Balance
Return
£m
£m
£m
%
Banks & Building societies (unsecured)
Covered bonds (secured)
Govt (incl local authorities)
Isle of Wight Council Pension Fund
Corporate nonds and loans
Money Market Funds
Other Pooled Funds
Total Investments

4.0
28.8
10.4
20.2
63.4

6.0
16.2
(2.4)
(16.2)
3.6

10.0
45.0
8.0
4.0
67.0

Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the council to invest its funds
prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its treasury investments
before seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield. The council’s objective when
investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising
the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low
investment income.
Given the increasing risk and low returns from short-term unsecured bank investments,
the council has continued in the more secure investment of lending to other local as
shown in table 5 above. As a result, investment risk was diversified. The 2018/19
average income return of 0.85% was maintained throughout 2019/20.
The progression of risk and return metrics are shown in the extracts from Arlingclose’s
quarterly investment benchmarking in Table 6 below.
Table 6: Investment Benchmarking – Treasury investments managed in-house

Page 67

31.03.2019
30.06.2019
30.09.2019
31.12.2019
31.03.2020
Similar LAs
All LAs

Credit
Score

Credit
Rating

3.98
3.99
4.08
3.89
3.65
4.26
4.03

AAAAAAAAAAAAAA-

Weighted Rate of
Bail-in
Average Return
exposure
Maturity
%
%
days
38%
38%
57%
55%
22%
62%
56%

53
60
26
102
147
52
20

0.84%
0.81%
0.78%
0.82%
0.79%
0.60%
0.64%

In a relatively short period following the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, the global
economic fallout was sharp and large. Market reaction was extreme with large falls in
equities, corporate bond markets and, to some extent, real estate echoing lockdowninduced paralysis and the uncharted challenges for governments, businesses and
individuals. Volatility, measured by the VIX index, was almost as high as during the
global financial crisis of 2008/9 and evidenced in plummeting equity prices and the
widening of corporate bond spreads, very close to rivalling those twelve years ago. Gilt
yields fell but credit spreads widened markedly reflecting the sharp deterioration in
economic and credit conditions associated with a sudden stagnation in economies, so
corporate bonds yields (comprised of the gilt yield plus the credit spread) rose and prices
therefore fell.
Non-Treasury Investments
The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code now
covers all the financial assets of the council as well as other non-financial assets which
the council holds primarily for financial return. This is replicated in the Investment
Guidance issued by Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s
(MHCLG) and Welsh Government, in which the definition of investments is further
broadened to also include all such assets held partially for financial return.
The council also held £39.8 million of such investments in
• directly owned property £33.1 million
• shared ownership housing £3.7 million
• loans to local businesses £3.0 million
A full list of the council’s non-treasury investments is available in the Isle of Wight Council
Statement of Accounts 2019/20
These investments generated £0.6 million of investment income for the council after
taking account of direct costs, representing a rate of return of 1.93%

Page 68

Treasury Performance
The council measures the financial performance of its treasury management activities
both in terms of its impact on the revenue budget and its relationship to benchmark
interest rates, as shown in table 7 below.
Table 7: Performance

Total Investment Income
Total Cost of Borrowing
GRAND TOTAL

Actual
£m

Budget
£m

0.5
(7.5)
(7.0)

0.2
(8.7)
(8.5)

Over /
Under
£m
0.3
1.2
1.5

Actual
%
0.85%
2.97%
n/a

Benchma
rk
%
0.64%
n/a

Over /
Under
%
n/a

Compliance
The Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer reports that all treasury management
activities undertaken during the year complied fully with the CIPFA Code of Practice and
the council’s approved Treasury Management Strategy.
Compliance with specific investment limits is demonstrated in table 8 below.
Table 8: Investment Limits

Any single organisation, except the UK
Government
Any group of organisations under the same
ownership
Money Market Funds

2019/20 31.03.2020
Maximum
Actual

2019/20
Limit

Complied?

10

10

10



10

4

10



40

4

50



The 2019-20 limit for total investment in Money Market Funds was increased to £50
million from £35 million, as reported at the December 2019 Audit Committee meeting.
Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt is
demonstrated in table 9 below.

Page 69

Table 9: Debt Limits
2019/20
2019/20
Operational Authorised
Boundary
Limit
392.9
430.0

2019/20
Maximum

31.3.2020
Actual

Borrowing

293.4

279.3

PFI and Finance Leases

123.6

101.1

125.0

135.0



Total Debt

417.0

380.4

517.9

565.0



Complied?


The 2019-20 operational boundary and the authorised limit for PFI and finance lease
debt were increased to £125 million (from £101.2 million) and £135 million (from £110
million) respectively, as reported at the December 2019 Audit Committee meeting.
Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it is not
significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to variations in cash
flow, and this is not counted as a compliance failure.
Treasury Management Indicators
The council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using
the following indicators.
Security: The council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by
monitoring the value-weighted average credit score of its investment portfolio. This is
calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the
arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are
assigned a score based on their perceived risk.

Portfolio average credit score

31.03.20
Actual
3.65

2019/20
Target
4.03

Complied ?


Liquidity: The council maintains detailed cash flow forecasts with a view to keeping
minimum surplus cash balances. It addresses liquidity issues by restricting a significant
proportion of its investment opportunities to short term and instant access deposits.

Total cash available within 3 months

31.03.2020
Actual
£m

2019/20
Target
£m

Complied?

31.3

15



Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the council’s exposure to
interest rate risk. The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in
interests was:
Page 70

31.03.20
Actual
£m

2019/20
Limit
£m

Complied?

Upper limit on one-year revenue
impact of a 1% rise in interest rates

-0.01

-0.05



Upper limit on one-year revenue
impact of a 1% fall in interest rates

0.01

0.05



Interest Rate Risk Indicator

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing
loans and investment will be replaced at current rates.
Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the council’s exposure
to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of all borrowing
were:
31.03.2020
Actual

Upper
Limit

Lower
Limit

Complied?

Under 12 months

27%

50%

0%



12 months and within 24 months

2%

30%

0%



24 months and within 5 years

6%

30%

0%



5 years and within 10 years

12%

50%

0%



10 years and above

52%

95%

0%



Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing
is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.
Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than a year: The purpose of this
indicator is to control the council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking
early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-term principal sum invested to
final maturities beyond the period end were:

Actual principal invested beyond year
end
Limit on principal invested beyond year
end
Complied?

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Nil

Nil

Nil

35

40

45







Other
IFRS 16: CIPFA/LASAAC has proposed delaying the implementation of the new IFRS
16 Leases accounting standard for a further year to 2021/22.

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

